








1953 are a schoolhouse, a hotel, a livery stable,
a saloon, and a general store.

IRON MINING in Fillmore County, where
open pit operations are in progress in the heart
of an agricultural area, is the subject of an
article by Edward Schaefer in the Minneapolis
Star for July 31. The author reports that two
companies operating near Chatfield and Spring
Valley together shipped out about two hundred
and forty thousand tons of ore in 1958. Photo-
graphs of a crushing and washing plant and an
open pit mine accompany the article.

THE EXPANSION of Minneapolis-Honeywell
Regulator Company since 1913, when Harold W.
Sweatt first joined the organization, is recounted
by Carl Rieser in Fortune magazine for May.
Under Mr. Sweatt’s informal leadership, the
author writes, the company has grown “from
tending furnaces . up to tending missiles in
space,” becoming “the world’s biggest maker of
controls.”

TWO VIEWS in full color of the Southdale
shopping center at Bloomington are among the
llustrations appearing with Grady Clay’s article,
“Metropolis Regained.” in the July issue of
Horizon. Mr. Clay presents a penetrating dis-
cussion of eity planning, concentrating upon
“the values which have made cities the heart of
every civilization.”

THE CAREER of Archibald G. Bush, chainman
of the executive committee of Minnesota Min-
ing and Manufacturing Company, is the subject
of a feature article by Charles F. Stutz in the
St. Paul Pioneer Press for June 28, where it ap-
pears under the heading “He Sold His Services
with Sandpaper.” A native of the Granite Falls
area, Mr. Bush is described as “one of the cen-
tury’s master salesmen.”

TO MARK its centennial, the wholesale firm of
Farwell, Ozmun, Kirk and Company of St. Paul
has published a booklet entitled From Stern-
Wheelers to Space Travel: Our First 100 Years
1859-1959 (24 p.). Established under the name
Cheritree and Farwell, the company was one
of the earliest hardware firms in St. Paul. The
illustrated booklet outlines its continued growth,
despite setbacks like a disastrous fire in Novem-
ber, 1891.

TWO landmarks which stood on the same site
on White Bear Lake — the Leip Hotel and the
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clubhouse of the St. Paul Automobile Club—
are described by Steve Alnes in the St. Paul Dis-
patch for June 24. The hotel, which dated from
the 1880s, burned in 1897, according to Mr.
Alnes, and the clubhouse was erected in 1914.
The property passed into private hands in 1936,
and now the clubhouse has been removed to
make way for a shopping center. Photographs
of both buildings accompany the article.

“HOW St. Peter Was Robbed for St. Paul” is
the title of a short article by Don C. Miller in
the November, 1958, issue of Coronet. The au-
thor reconstructs with humor Joseph Rolette’s
successful plot of 1857 which “saved the capital
to St. Paul.” A member of the territorial coun-
cil, Rolette was able to prevent Governor Willis
A. Gorman from signing a bill which named St.
Peter the capital of Minnesota.

THE STEAMBOAT “Julius C. Wilkie,” for-
merly known as the “James P. Pearson,” which
houses a museum of upper Mississippi River
materials at Levee Park in Winona, was dedi-
cated in ceremonies arranged by the Winona
County Historical Society on August 30. The
new name honors a former resident of Winona,
members of whose family provided most of the
funds for the restoration of the hoat. The mu-
seum on 1ts second deck depicts a “bygone era
when the ery of ‘steamboat round the bend’ was
the cue for erowds to come down to the levee,”
according to a descriptive report in the Winona
Daily News for August 18.

A PLAQUE marking the site of the Joseph R.
Brown house near Sacred Heart was dedicated
with appropriate ceremonies on July 19. About
six hundred people gathered for the program,
which included talks by Dr. George A. Selke,
commissioner of conservation, and Senator Leo
Lauerman. The area where Brown built his
house. which was destroyed in the Sioux Out-
break, is now maintained as a state wayside
park. Among those who attended the ceremonies
were the traveling historians who joined the
Minnesota Historical Society’s tour to Lakes
Traverse and Big Stone on July 18 and 19.

READERS of Dan Whetstone's article in the
June issue of this magazine will be interested in
some notes on his experiences as a newspaper
editor in the Renville County village of Franklin
appearing in the Cut Bank Pioneer Press for
July 16. This golden anniversary edition of the
Montana newspaper commemorates the passing
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of fifty years since it was founded by Mr. Whet-
stone in 1909. A full-page feature by his grand-
daughter, Kay Whetstone, quotes extensively
from his recollections of Gibbon, where he served
as a “Printer’s Apprentice” from 1898 to 1901,
and adds an interview about the years as pub-
lisher of the Franklin Tribune which followed.

NEWS OF THE SOCIETY

THE APPROPRIATION for the society’s work
granted by the 1959 legislature makes necessary
some curtailment of its activities. Two positions
on the library staff were eliminated, leaving the
saciety with thirty-seven instead of thirty-nine
positions. The reduction in funds makes it
necessary to close the library on Saturdays and
the museum on Sundays; the museum, however,
will be open on Saturdays from 12:30 pM. to
4:30 e, One addition to the appropriation
provides a thousand dollars for a survey of his-
toric sites in Minnesota. A detailed report on
the society’s financial situation as it results from
the legislature’s action appears in the August
issue of the Minnesota History News.

THE SEVENTH annual teachers' institute in
Minnesota history will be held in St. Paul under
the society’s auspices on October 8. Revolving
about the theme “The Regional Approach to
the Study of Minnesota History,” it will open
in the auditorium of the State Office Building
at 1:30 pm. with a panel discussion of “The
Red River Valley: Its Present Resources and
Development.” Speakers will include Neil
Thompson of Moorhead State College, Mason
Boudrye of the Minnesota Academy of Science,
and Roy Johnson of the Fargo Forum. A tour
of the Historical Building, dinner in the cafe-
teria of the Highway Building, and an address
on “History, Geography, and the Study of Min-
nesota” by Professor John R. Borchert of the
department of geography in the University of
Minnesota are other features of the program,
which will continue until 7:00 p.a1. Those who
plan to attend should make reservations through
Miss Mathilda Heck at the Minnesota Histor-
ical Society.

THE SITE of the important Sioux village of
Kathio on Mille Laes Lake is included in Mr.
and Mrs. Harry D. Ayer’s recent gift to the
society. In addition to more thau a hundred
acres of lakeside property, they have presented
their extensive collection of Indian artifacts and
other materials, a new building in which to
house and display them, the Indian trading post
which they long have operated, and a trust fund
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for their perpetual maintenance and operation.
Mr. and Mrs. Ayer have been living and work-
ing at Vineland in the Mille Lacs Lake area
since 1914, and there they assembled their
unique Indian collection, which is particularly
strong in materials relating to the Minnesota
Chippewa. Plans are under way for the early
opening of the museum and for the permanent
preservation of the property as a park and his-
toric site.

THE TOUR to Winnipeg sponsored by the soci-
ety on August 14 is the subject of editorials in
the Minneapolis Tribune for August 20 and the
St. Paul Pioneer Press for August 21. Both stress
the “international goodwill” that marked this
trek of eighty-four Minnesotans to the Canadian
city north of the border. The Tribune also in-
cludes a letter to the editor from the society’s
assistant director, Robert C. Wheeler, in which
he notes some of the “common history’ shared
by Manitoba and Minnesota. In describing the
friendly reception accorded the visitors, he re-
ports that “we were welcomed by Marcel Boulic,
provincial secretary; speakers were arranged at
every site; the Hudson’s Bay company sponsored
two meals, printed an attractive program, and
even arranged for a Scottish bagpiper; the bells
of historical St. Boniface were tolled in our
honor; and the Manitoba Historical Society
opened every door.”” Mr. Wheeler concludes that
“What was planned as an informal tour turned
into a semi-official visit with diplomatic over-
tones.”

THE SOCIETY’S director, Mr. Fridley, is an
ex officio member of an interim commission estah-
lished by the 1959 legislature to draft plans for
Minnesota centennial observances of the Civil
War in 1961 and the Sioux Outbreak in 1962.
Five state senators and five representatives were
named to the commission. At its organization
meeting on August 14, Senator Leslie E. Westin
was elected chairman, Representative John
Tracy Anderson, vice-chairman, and Represen-
tative Richard J. Parish, secretary. The legisla-
ture appropriated $2,500 to finance the work of
the commission,

ON SEPTEMBER 4. Mr. William K. Gamber
resigned as curator of the society’s museum, a
position he had held since last November. He
plans to study for the Catholic priesthood at the
St. Paul Seminary. His successor in the museum
has not yet been named. Another change in per-
sonnel took place in August, when Miss Esther
Johnson, a member of the library’s cataloguing
staff since 1928, retired.
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